
City Council Meeting Agenda 

March 13, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 

2 S Main, South Hutchinson, KS 67505 

  

 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

__Nisly __Schmidt __Weber __Garretson __Fairbanks __Scofield 

 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (ADDITIONS/DELETIONS) 

D. APPOINTMENT OF CITY CLERK 

1. Appointment of Michele Nightingale as city clerk (followed by swearing in) 

 

Motion _______________ Second_______________ Vote_______________ 

 

2. Swearing in of City Clerk Michele Nightingale 

 

E. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Non-elected Personnel 

2. Non-elected Personnel 

 

F. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

G. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting, February 13, 2023 

2. Approval of Minutes – Special Meeting, February 16, 2023 

3. Approval of Invoices 

4. Approval to add City Clerk Michele Nightingale as an authorized signer on City bank 

accounts at Farmers Bank & Trust, Simmons Bank, and all certificates of deposit 

5. Rescind signing authority of any former City employee on all bank accounts at 

Farmers Bank & Trust, Simmons Bank, and all certificates of deposit 

 

Motion _______________ Second_______________ Vote_______________ 

 

H. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Approval of conditional use permit application submitted by Harmoni Towers, LLC 

 

Motion _______________ Second_______________ Vote_______________ 

 

2. Approval of building permit submitted by Harmoni Towers, LLC 

 

Motion _______________ Second_______________ Vote_______________ 

 

I.          DISCUSSION ITEMS 

J.          CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

K. GOVERNING BODY COMMENTS 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

ITEM: 
G 1-5 

 

 

Meeting Date:   March 13, 2023 
Department:   Administration 
Prepared By:  Joseph Turner, City Administrator 
Agenda Title:  Consent Agenda 

 

Background/Analysis –Consent agendas are designed to take routine business items, 
non-controversial items, and other matters where a consensus has been reached and 
combine them into one single motion and vote. Items on the consent agenda should not be 
discussed or debated by the governing body. Any member of the governing body may elect 
to pull an item from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
Notable Items: 
 

• Approval of Minutes from February 13, 2023 regular meeting 

• Approval of Minutes from February 16, 2023 special council meeting 

• Approval of Invoices 

• Approval to add City Clerk Michele Nightingale as an authorized signer on City bank 
accounts at Farmers Bank & Trust, Simmons Bank, and all certificates of deposit 

• Rescind signing authority of any former City employee on all bank accounts at 
Farmers Bank & Trust, Simmons Bank, and all certificates of deposit 
 

Recommendation – Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 
Exhibit A – Minutes from February 13, 2023 regular meeting 
Exhibit B – Minutes from February 16, 2023 special council meeting 
Exhibit C – Invoice Approval List 



City Council Meeting Agenda 

February 13, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 

2 S Main, South Hutchinson, KS 67505 

  

 

 

MINUTES for February 13, 2023 Council Meeting 
 

Present: Nisly, Schmidt, Schenk, Garretson 

Absent:  Fairbanks, Scofield 

Others Present: City Administrator Joseph Turner, City Attorney Mark Tremaine 

 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

X Nisly X Schmidt X Schenk X Garretson A Fairbanks A Scofield 

 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (ADDITIONS/DELETIONS) 

D. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

E. HEARINGS, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS & RECOGNITIONS 

F. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting, January 23, 2023 

2. Approval of Invoices 

3. Approval to add Councilman Jeremy Schmidt as an authorized signer on accounts at 

Farmers Bank & Trust, Simmons Bank, and all certificates of deposit. 

4. Approval of Mobile Home Park License (Betty’s MHP North & South) 

5. Approval of Mobile Home Park License (Greenlawn MHP) 

6. Approval of Commercial Trash Hauler’s License (Hutchinson Septic Service) 

 

Motion: Schenk Second: Nisly   Vote: 3-0 

 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Consider Zoning Amendment Application by Open Arms Daycare 

 

Motion: Schmidt Second: Schenk Vote: 3-0 

 

2. Call Special Council Meeting for Feb. 16, 2023, to consider ordinance approving 

zoning amendment for Open Arms Daycare 

 

Motion: Schmidt Second: Nisly   Vote: 3-0 

 

H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. City Zoning Code and related issues 

 

I.          CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

J.          GOVERNING BODY COMMENTS 

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Attorney-Client Privilege 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion: Nisly  Second: Schmidt Vote: 3-0 

 

Exhibit A -  1



City Council Meeting Agenda 

February 16, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 

2 S Main, South Hutchinson, KS 67505 

  

 

 

MINUTES for February 16, 2023 Special Council Meeting 
 

All members of the council, except Jeremy Schmidt, were present along with City Administrator 

Joseph Turner. 

 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

X Nisly  A Schmidt  X Schenk  X Garretson  X Fairbanks  X Scofield 

 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

C. ACTION ITEM 

1. Approval of Ordinance No. 23-01 – Zoning Amendment for 600 N. Main St. 

 

Motion: Nisly  Second: Scofield Vote: 4-0 

 

D. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion: Scofield Second: Nisly  Vote: 4-0 

 

Exhibit B -  1



Gen Gov Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-101-6000 City Hall Cable Services COX $16.78

101-101-6000 Electricity Evergy $272.10

101-101-6000 Gas Service KS Gas Service $378.61

101-101-6000 Phone Service Vaspian $118.50

101-101-6002 Printer Repair Services Better Image $217.50

101-101-6002 City Hall Cleaning FreshCo $150.00

101-101-6002 City Hall Cleaning FreshCo $150.00

101-101-6002 Attorney Services Mark Tremaine $2,000.00

101-101-6002 Technology Leading Edge-Gavin $1,771.55

101-101-6004 AATRIX Software First Bank Card $66.33

101-101-7000 Postage for Meter Reserve/Pitney Bowes $200.00

101-101-7000 Paper & Office Supplies Office Plus $200.54

101-101-7000 Dog Tags Office Plus $65.00

101-101-7000 Code Letters Postage First Bank Card $23.55

101-101-7000 End of Year Tax Forms First Bank Card $69.71

101-101-7000 Office Supplies Lowe's $63.57

101-101-7000 Office Supplies Lowe's $21.82

101-101-7000 Office Supplies Office Plus $92.75

101-101-7000 City Hall Key (Joe-Entry Door) Pat's Lock & Key $2.35

101-101-7001 Staff Lunch Water Appeal Hearing First Bank Card $26.99

101-101-7002 Pleated Filter Decker & Mattison $26.94

101-101-7002 Bottled Water Culligan $42.63

101-101-7005 Vehicle Allowance Joe Turner $375.00

$6,352.22

Police Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-102-6000 PD Cable Services COX $39.87

101-102-6000 Electricity Evergy $601.58

101-102-6000 Gas Service KS Gas Service $1,348.97

101-102-6000 Phone Service Vaspian $288.00

101-102-6002 Gate Repair/Servicing EZ Lift Door Systems $177.00

101-102-6002 Amazon Prime Fees First Bank Card $14.99

101-102-6002 Janitorial Services Tabitha Maxfield $150.00

101-102-6002 Hard Drive/Amazon Prime First Bank Card $55.00

101-102-6004 Notary Insurance First Bank Card $50.00

101-102-6004 PD Car Service Allen Samuels $1,295.36

101-102-6004 Storage Useage Undergroud Vaults & Storage $8.95

101-102-6005 Phone Service Verizon $164.12

101-102-6005 JetPack Phone Service Verizon $240.06

101-102-6012 Police Officer Training First Bank Card $345.00

101-102-6012 KNOA Training Conf First Bank Card $500.00

101-102-7000 Postage for Meter Reserve/Pitney Bowes $200.00

101-102-7000 USB/Flash Drives Leading Edge - Gavin $172.91

INVOICES

Exhibit C -  1



101-102-7000 Office Supplies Office Plus $46.87

101-102-7000 Postage First Bank Card $16.25

101-102-7000 Office Supplies First Bank Card $207.94

101-102-7002 Pleated Filter Decker & Mattison $38.89

101-102-7002 Bottled Water Culligan $19.60

101-102-7004 Christmas GC's First Bank Card $700.00

101-102-7004 Car Camera Digital Ally $852.00

101-102-7009 Holsters First Bank Card $559.33

101-102-7009 Uniform Pants Gall's $369.89

$8,462.58

Street Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-103-6000 Electricity Evergy $687.22

101-103-6000 Gas Service KS Gas Service $965.57

101-103-6000 Phone Service Vaspian $85.00

101-103-6002 Main St. SH Sign & irrigation Stewart Electric $500.00

101-103-6003 Uniform Cleaning Unifirst $113.35

101-103-6003 Uniform Cleaning Unifirst $98.39

101-103-7000 Postage for Meter Reserve/Pitney Bowes $200.00

101-103-7002 Maintenance Supplies Car Quest $122.22

101-103-7002 Rubber Hose Fairview Service $6.00

101-103-7002 CAT Loader Filter Rose Motor Supply Inc. $23.25

$2,801.00

Fire Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-104-6000 FD Cable Services COX $10.49

101-104-6000 Electricity Evergy $367.66

101-104-6000 Gas Service KS Gas Service $462.53

101-104-6000 Phone Services Vaspian $67.50

101-104-6002 Fire Chief License Leading Edge - Gavin $111.00

101-104-6004 When I Work First Bank Card $504.00

101-104-6005 Phone Services Verizon $144.24

101-104-6011 Fire Chief Dues 2023 Reno Co Fire Chief's Assoc $15.00

101-104-6011 Fire Chief Membership Dues First Bank Card $80.00

101-104-6011 KSA First Bank Card $80.00

101-104-7000 Postage for Meter Reserve/Pitney Bowes $100.00

101-104-7002 Gloves/Cleaning Supplies Janitorial Supply $83.71

101-104-7002 Oxygen Regulator (after credit applied) First Bank Card $1.97

101-104-7002 Pleated Filter Decker & Mattison $15.00

101-104-7002 Bottled water Culligan $16.80

101-104-7002 Hardware Supplies Westlake Hardware $154.96

101-104-7004 Christmas GC's First Bank Card $100.00

101-104-7009 FD Uniform Embroidery Apollo Engraving $510.09

101-104-7009 Pants & Gear Gall's $340.55

101-104-7009 Uniform Service Witmer Public Safety Group $358.00

101-104-8000 Yellow Hose Danko Emerg. Equip. $363.16

101-104-8000 Radio Repair TBS Electronics $40.00

Exhibit C -  2



101-104-8010 Air Brake Repair Daniel Soto $1,300.00

$5,226.66

Court Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-106-6004 Inmate Medical Care Diamond Drug $41.88

101-106-6004 Boarding (Stray Dog) Prairie Vista Vet. Hosp. $131.53

101-106-6016 Judge Services Larry Bolton $1,100.00

101-106-6016 Judge Services Rick Roberts $1,100.00

101-106-6017 January Jail Fees Reno Co Sheriff's Office $1,120.00

101-106-6018 Public Defender Services Kaplan Law $450.00

101-106-6018 Pub Def Legal Services Strong Point Law $150.00

101-106-7000 Office Supplies Office Plus $123.34

101-106-7001 Municipal Judge Dues Ks Mun Judge Assoc $25.00

$4,241.75

GENERAL TOTAL $27,084.21

Park Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-105-6000 Electricity Evergy $106.51

$106.51

Non-Departmental Description Vendor Inv. Amt

101-109-6000 Electricity Evergy $6,146.48

101-109-6026 Refuse Service Nisley $9,237.90

101-109-6026 Refuse Service Nisley $9,138.35

$24,522.73

Water Description Vendor Inv. Amt

201-000-6000 Locate Fees Kansas One Call $28.80

201-000-6000 Locate Fees Kansas One Call $18.60

201-000-6000 Electricity Evergy $3,224.53

201-000-6002 Water Samples First Bank Card $9.85

201-000-6002 Water Truck Logo Sign Source $40.00

201-000-6003 Uniform CLeaning Unifirst $113.35

201-000-6003 Uniform CLeaning Unifirst $93.39

201-000-6005 Phone Service Verizon $169.85

201-000-7000 Bulk Permit Postage USPS $1,000.00

201-000-7000 Postage for Meter Reserve/Pitney Bowes $100.00

201-000-7000 Water Samples Postage First Bank Card $9.40

201-000-7002 PVC Fitting & Water Parts Ferguson $114.45

201-000-7002 PVC Pipe Lowe's $17.25

201-000-7002 Water Dept Parts Core & Main $16,725.01

201-000-7002 Water Dept Repairs Mid-America Redi-Mix $448.28

201-000-7002 Water Dept Supplies Tractor Supply $169.99

201-000-7002 Hardware Supplies Westlake Hardware $117.63

201-000-7004 Christmas GC's First Bank Card $450.00

201-000-8013 Water Protection Fees KS Dep of Rev. WPF $2,537.89

Exhibit C -  3



$25,388.27

Sewer Description Vendor Inv. Amt

301-000-6000 Electricity Evergy $12,556.14

301-000-6000 Locate Fees Kansas One Call $28.80

301-000-6000 Locate Fees Kansas One Call $18.60

301-000-6000 Phone Service Verizon $294.84

301-000-6002 Sewer Plant Window Repair Advantage Siding & Window $760.00

301-000-6002 WTP PLC Fault Zenor Electric $651.49

301-000-6002 Lab Analysis SDK Laboratories $299.00

301-000-6003 Uniform Cleaning Unifirst $113.35

301-000-6003 Uniform Cleaning Unifirst $93.39

301-000-6003 Grit Removal (5 Trips) Reno Co Solid Waste $205.00

301-000-6004 Training/Consulting Jamie Arneson $180.00

301-000-6005 Phone Service Verizon $81.38

301-000-7000 Postage for Meter Reserve/Pitney Bowes $100.00

301-000-7000 Bulk Permit Postage USPS $1,000.00

301-000-7002 Belt thickener Feed Box Seal BDP Industries $171.66

301-000-7002 Maintenance Supplies Car Quest $103.08

301-000-7002 KDHE Test - Dunn First Bank Card $25.00

301-000-7002 Sewer Supplies Lowe's $191.11

301-000-7004 Christmas GC's First Bank Card $450.00

$17,322.84

Bond & Interest Description Vendor Inv. Amt

601-000-8004 GO Bond 2012 Interest Office of the State Treasurer $10,075.00

601-000-8004 GO Bond 2018 Interest Office of the State Treasurer $27,650.00

601-000-8004 GO Bond 2017 Interest Office of the State Treasurer $9,381.25

601-000-8004 GO Bond 2019 Interest Office of the State Treasurer $29,250.00

$76,356.25

ASAP Description Vendor Inv. Amt

801-000-4009 Restitution *(Change to 6004?) 505 Liquor $7.99

801-000-6004 Restitution SH Mun. Court $1,435.00

801-000-6004 Restitution Geak Liquor $24.62

801-000-6004 Restitution Robbie Jarrett $5.00

801-000-6004 Restitution SH Mun. Court $245.00

801-000-6004 Restitution Brayden Norman $565.00

$2,282.61

Comm Ctr Description Vendor Inv. Amt

811-000-6000 Electricity Evergy $223.31

811-000-6000 Internet Service IdeaTek $110.00

811-000-6000 Internet Service IdeaTek $110.00

811-000-6000 Gas Service KS Gas Service $266.14

811-000-6004 Community Center Cleaning FreshCo $300.00

Exhibit C -  4



811-000-6004 Community Center Cleaning FreshCo $500.00

811-000-7002 Pleated Filter Decker & Mattison $22.35

$1,531.80

Equip. Reserve Description Vendor Inv. Amt

901-000-8021 Handgun Optics (4) Gun Bros $1,320.00

901-000-8023 Defibrilator First Bank Card $1,799.00

$3,119.00

Ins. Proceeds Fund Description Vendor Inv. Amt

913-000-6004 Insurance Deposit Return Alvie Lohr $5,000.00

$5,000.00

GRAND TOTAL $182,714.22

Exhibit C -  5



 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

ITEM: 
H 1-2 

 

 

Meeting Date:   March 13, 2023 
Department:   Administration 
Prepared By:  Joseph Turner, City Administrator 
Agenda Title:  Harmoni Towers – Cell Tower Project 

 

Background/Analysis – The City of South Hutchinson argued in court that Harmoni 
Towers was required to secure a variance in order to build a cell tower because their project 
did not conform with set-back requirements outlined in our code. The court ruled in our 
favor. 
 
Harmoni Towers requested a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA). The BZA 
approved the variance. 
 
In order to continue fighting the cell tower project, the City would have to spend at least an 
additional $25,000 in legal fees with an uncertain final outcome.  
 
If the governing body desires to suspend further legal action, the council must approve the 
conditional use permit and the building permit application. 
 
Financial Impact – None. 
 
Recommendation – Staff recommends two motions: 
 

1. Motion to approve the Harmoni Towers conditional use permit. 
2. Motion to approve the Harmoni Towers building permit application. 

 
Exhibit C – Harmoni Towers Conditional Use Permit Application 
Exhibit D – Harmoni Towers Building Permit Application 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit D -  1



Exhibit D -  2



Exhibit D -  3



Exhibit D -  4



Exhibit E -  1



Exhibit E -  2



Exhibit E -  3



Exhibit E -  4



Exhibit E -  5



Exhibit E -  6



Exhibit E -  7


	March 13, 2023 Council Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.1)
	ITEM G1. Consent Agenda.pdf (p.2)
	ITEM G1. Exhibit A. February 13, 2023 Council Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.3)
	ITEM G2. Exhibit B. February 16, 2023 Special Council Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.4)
	ITEM G3. Exhibit C. Invoice Approval List.pdf (p.5-9)
	ITEM H1. Harmoni Towers, LLC.pdf (p.10)
	ITEM H1. Exhibit D. Harmoni Tower conditional use permit app.pdf (p.11-14)
	ITEM H2. Exhibit E. Harmoni Tower building permit app.pdf (p.15-21)

